
CITY OF MERRILL 

COMMON COUNCIL 

AGENDA ● TUESDAY OCTOBER 13, 2020 

 Regular Meeting City Hall Council Chambers 6:00 PM 

1. Call to Order 

2. Silent Prayer 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

4. Roll Call 

5. Public Comment Period 

6. Minutes of previous Common Council meeting(s): 

1. Minutes of September 8, 2020 Common Council meeting   

7. Revenue & Expense Reports(s): 

1. Revenue & Expense Report for the period ending September 30, 2020   

8. General agenda items: 

1. Employee Years of Service Recognition:   

 Donald A. Norman, 15 years (Police Department)   

9. Committee of the Whole: 

1. Consider request to lift the hiring freeze to create and fill Fire Inspector 
position (part-time) in the Fire Department.  The Committee of the Whole 
recommends approval.  

10. Personnel & Finance Committee: 

1. Bowmar Appraisal contract for 2021-2022   

11. Placing Committee Reports on File: 

1. Consider placing the following committee reports on file: Airport Commission, 
Board of Review, Committee of the Whole/Redevelopment Authority (joint 
meeting), Health & Safety Committee, Library Board, Personnel & Finance 
Committee, Redevelopment Authority, Transit Commission and Water & 
Sewage Disposal Committee.   

12. Ordinances: 

1. An Ordinance amending Code of Ordinances Chapter 36, Article V, Section 
36-251, related to ATV/UTV routes.  At the Common Council meeting on 
September 8, 2020, this ordinance was given a first reading only. The Health 
and Safety Committee recommends approval.  

2. An Ordinance amending Code of Ordinances Chapter 6, Article IV, Section 6-
90, to establish maximum number, size and location of apiaries (places where 
bees are kept) on private property.  The Health and Safety Committee 
recommends approval.  



Agenda Common Council Tuesday October 13, 2020 

13. Resolutions: 

1. A Resolution approving a Preliminary Plat for single family residential 
development between West St. Paul Street and West Tenth Street.  The City 
Plan Commission recommends approval.  

2. A Resolution approving a Conditional Use Permit to remodel existing 
structure and construct two new storage buildings at 305 East First Street.  
The City Plan Commission recommends approval.  

3. A Resolution authorizing a Development Agreement by and between the City 
and JJ Premier LLC.  The Redevelopment Authority recommends approval.  

4. A Resolution authorizing a Development Agreement by and between the City 
and RC-N-DI Investments LLC.  The Redevelopment Authority recommends 
approval.  

5. A Resolution authorizing the issuance and sale of a $1,069,000 General 
Obligation Promissory Note.   

6. A Resolution introduced by Mayor Woellner regarding the use of face masks.   

14. Mayor's Communications 

15. Adjournment 

 

William N. Heideman, CMC, WCMC 
City Clerk 

 
The Merrill City Hall is accessible to the physically disadvantaged. If special accommodations are needed, 

please contact the Merrill City Hall at (715) 536-5594. 



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 3

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
9-

8-
20

20
  (

53
52

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 8
, 2

02
0 

C
o

m
m

o
n

 C
o

u
n

ci
l m

ee
ti

n
g

)



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 4

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
9-

8-
20

20
  (

53
52

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 8
, 2

02
0 

C
o

m
m

o
n

 C
o

u
n

ci
l m

ee
ti

n
g

)



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 5

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
9-

8-
20

20
  (

53
52

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 8
, 2

02
0 

C
o

m
m

o
n

 C
o

u
n

ci
l m

ee
ti

n
g

)



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 6

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
9-

8-
20

20
  (

53
52

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 8
, 2

02
0 

C
o

m
m

o
n

 C
o

u
n

ci
l m

ee
ti

n
g

)



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 7

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
9-

8-
20

20
  (

53
52

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 8
, 2

02
0 

C
o

m
m

o
n

 C
o

u
n

ci
l m

ee
ti

n
g

)



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
9-

8-
20

20
  (

53
52

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 8
, 2

02
0 

C
o

m
m

o
n

 C
o

u
n

ci
l m

ee
ti

n
g

)



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
9-

8-
20

20
  (

53
52

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 8
, 2

02
0 

C
o

m
m

o
n

 C
o

u
n

ci
l m

ee
ti

n
g

)



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
9-

8-
20

20
  (

53
52

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 8
, 2

02
0 

C
o

m
m

o
n

 C
o

u
n

ci
l m

ee
ti

n
g

)



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
9-

8-
20

20
  (

53
52

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 8
, 2

02
0 

C
o

m
m

o
n

 C
o

u
n

ci
l m

ee
ti

n
g

)



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
9-

8-
20

20
  (

53
52

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 8
, 2

02
0 

C
o

m
m

o
n

 C
o

u
n

ci
l m

ee
ti

n
g

)



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 13

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
9-

8-
20

20
  (

53
52

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 8
, 2

02
0 

C
o

m
m

o
n

 C
o

u
n

ci
l m

ee
ti

n
g

)



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 14

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
9-

8-
20

20
  (

53
52

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 8
, 2

02
0 

C
o

m
m

o
n

 C
o

u
n

ci
l m

ee
ti

n
g

)



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 15

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
9-

8-
20

20
  (

53
52

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 8
, 2

02
0 

C
o

m
m

o
n

 C
o

u
n

ci
l m

ee
ti

n
g

)



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 16

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
9-

8-
20

20
  (

53
52

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 8
, 2

02
0 

C
o

m
m

o
n

 C
o

u
n

ci
l m

ee
ti

n
g

)



6.1.a

Packet Pg. 17

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
u

n
ci

l M
in

u
te

s 
9-

8-
20

20
  (

53
52

 :
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

S
ep

te
m

b
er

 8
, 2

02
0 

C
o

m
m

o
n

 C
o

u
n

ci
l m

ee
ti

n
g

)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 18

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 19

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 20

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 21

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 22

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 28

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 31

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 35

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 36

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 37

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 38

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 39

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 40

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 41

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 42

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



7.1.a

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

ev
en

u
e-

E
xp

en
se

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 2

02
0-

09
  (

53
53

 :
 R

ev
en

u
e 

&
 E

xp
en

se
 R

ep
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e 

p
er

io
d

 e
n

d
in

g
 S

ep
te

m
b

er
 3

0,
 2

02
0)



ACTION TAKEN AT 9/29/20 COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING RE: FIRE 
INSPECTOR POSITION  
 
Information was in the meeting packet.  
 
It was noted that, if approved, this position would be funded from the non-lapsing 2% 
Fire Dues account. Therefore, creation of the position would have no tax levy impact.  
 
Motion (Osness/Blake) to approve creation and filling of the position. 

RESULT: APPROVED & SENT TO COUNCIL Next: 10/13/2020 6:00 PM 

 

9.1.a

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

ct
io

n
 f

ro
m

 C
O

W
 o

n
 F

ir
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
  (

53
60

 :
 C

re
at

e 
F

ir
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 in

 t
h

e 
F

ir
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t)



9.1.b

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 in

fo
  (

53
60

 :
 C

re
at

e 
F

ir
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 in

 t
h

e 
F

ir
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t)



9.1.b

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 in

fo
  (

53
60

 :
 C

re
at

e 
F

ir
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 in

 t
h

e 
F

ir
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t)



9.1.b

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 in

fo
  (

53
60

 :
 C

re
at

e 
F

ir
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 in

 t
h

e 
F

ir
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t)



9.1.b

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 in

fo
  (

53
60

 :
 C

re
at

e 
F

ir
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 in

 t
h

e 
F

ir
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t)



9.1.b

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 in

fo
  (

53
60

 :
 C

re
at

e 
F

ir
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 in

 t
h

e 
F

ir
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t)



9.1.b

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 in

fo
  (

53
60

 :
 C

re
at

e 
F

ir
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 in

 t
h

e 
F

ir
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t)



9.1.b

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 F

ir
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 in

fo
  (

53
60

 :
 C

re
at

e 
F

ir
e 

In
sp

ec
to

r 
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 in

 t
h

e 
F

ir
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t)



 
Kitt Koski 715-577-1875     PO Box 170 Minocqua, WI 54548 

 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF MERRILL – LINCOLN COUNTY 
 
 

Maintenance Contract 
 

For the years 2021 - 2022 
 
 

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
w

m
an

 A
p

p
ra

is
al

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

20
21

-2
02

2 
 (

53
67

 :
 B

o
w

m
ar

 A
p

p
ra

is
al

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

20
21

-2
02

2)



Page 1 of 5 
 

CITY OF MERRILL 
 

ASSESSMENT MAINTENANCE CONTRACT FOR THE YEARS 2021 - 2022 
 
THIS AGREEMENT by and between BOWMAR APPRAISAL, INC., a company hereinafter called the 
Appraiser and the City of Merrill, Lincoln County, hereinafter called the City. 
 
WITNESSETH:  The Appraiser and City for the consideration stated herein agree as follows: 
 

 ARTICLE I 
 
SCOPE OF WORK:  The Appraiser shall act as the Assessor for the City for the years 2021-2022.  The 
appraiser hereby agrees to perform everything to be performed under this contract, and to complete in a 
professional manner all the work required under this agreement.  All work shall be performed in 
accordance with applicable Wisconsin Statutes, court cases, and Department of Revenue administrative 
rules. 
 
The following numbered paragraphs describe the work covered by this agreement: 
 

1. The Appraiser shall answer all correspondence concerning the assessed values and related 
inquiries; 

 
2. The appraiser will obtain building permits in order to observe and value new construction, 

remodeling, and other alterations.  Partially completed improvements, properties in which 
buildings have been destroyed or moved, and properties in which the original parcel has been 
split into two or more parcels will be reviewed.  All property record cards will be updated and 
property record cards created for new parcels; 
 

3. The Appraiser will field check properties in which there appears to be a question concerning the 
assessed value of the property; 

 
4. The Appraiser will send out self-reporting Personal Property Forms to all personal property 

accounts in the City and analyze all returns.  Doomage Assessments (estimated) will be made on 
any personal property account that has not sent in a return; 

 
5. All forms to be completed for the Department of Revenue or County by the Assessor, including 

TIF reports, will be completed by the Appraiser for the City in a timely manner on or before the 
specified due dates; 

 
6. Prior to the scheduled Board of Review, the Appraiser will send change of value notices to 

property owners in which any valuation change to their assessment has been made; 
 

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
w

m
an

 A
p

p
ra

is
al

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

20
21

-2
02

2 
 (

53
67

 :
 B

o
w

m
ar

 A
p

p
ra

is
al

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

20
21

-2
02

2)



Page 2 of 5 
 

7. The Appraiser will aid the County Real Property Lister in completing Real Estate and Personal 
Property Assessment Rolls in a timely manner; 

 
8. The Appraiser shall arrange for scheduling of the Open Book and Board of Review with the 

Municipal Clerk; 
 

9. The Appraiser and/or his staff will be present for at least two (2) hours in the municipal building 
while the Assessment Roll is open for inspection, commonly referred to as "Open Book" to 
explain the assessed values; 

 
10. The Appraiser and/or his staff will attend all meetings of the Board of Review to explain and 

defend the assessed values and be prepared to testify under oath concerning such values.  In the 
event of appeal to the Department of Revenue or to the courts, the Appraiser and/or his staff shall 
be available to furnish testimony in defense of the assessed values. 

 
a. If the Department of Revenue or City should place additional requirements on the 

Appraiser after the initial date of the signing of this document, which requirements are 
not set forth in this contract, the Appraiser and the City shall negotiate and determine if 
additional fees are required to complete each additional requirement.  Any such 
additional fees are to be paid at the final installment of this contract. 

 
11. All office supplies, stamps, and telephone calls made by the Appraiser or his staff shall be paid 

by the Appraiser; 
 

12. The Appraiser shall maintain Worker's Compensation and Public Liability Insurance on himself 
and his staff; 

 
13. The City shall furnish adequate office space as necessary at no cost to the Appraiser; 

 
14. Additional components are set forth in addenda; 

 
 
  

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
w

m
an

 A
p

p
ra

is
al

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

20
21

-2
02

2 
 (

53
67

 :
 B

o
w

m
ar

 A
p

p
ra

is
al

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

20
21

-2
02

2)



Page 3 of 5 
 

 ARTICLE II 
 
COMPENSATION:  The City shall pay to the Appraiser for the performance of this contract $54,400 as 
outlined in Addenda.  The method of payment shall be quarterly invoices for services and expenses 
incurred during the previous quarter.  The City shall make these payments no later than 30 days after 
receiving an invoice. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF  
The parties hereto have set their hands this           day of __________________ 
 
 
APPROVED BY: 
 
City of Merrill 
 
By: _________________________________ date: _______________________________ 
 
 
Appraiser 
 
By: _________________________________ date: _______________________________ 
 
 
Witness 
 
By: _________________________________ date: _______________________________ 
 
  

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
w

m
an

 A
p

p
ra

is
al

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

20
21

-2
02

2 
 (

53
67

 :
 B

o
w

m
ar

 A
p

p
ra

is
al

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

20
21

-2
02

2)



Page 4 of 5 
 

ADDENDUM #1 
 

1. All building permit and sales information will be posted to appropriate assessment records; 

2. Sales information will be posted on appropriate assessment record(s) and reviewed as necessary; 

a. Sale information will be supplied to the Department of Revenue; 

3. This contract provides for two (2) hours of Open Book hearings1 and Board of Review. 

4. Assessments will be maintained utilizing appropriate computer programs; 

a. Computer Programs are detailed in addenda #2; 

5. Digital pictures of new and altered improvements will be taken as necessary; 

6. Sketches of dwellings will be updated as necessary; 

7. Sale book(s) or file(s) will be maintained using photographs and appropriate information; 

8. Compensation: 

a. The method of payment shall be quarterly invoices. The City shall make these payments 
no later than 30 days after receiving an invoice. 

 
i. For the year 2021 - $27,000 

ii. For the year 2022 - $27,400 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                 
1 These hearings give a property owner a chance to discuss the assessment informally with the Appraiser 
before going to the Board of Review. 

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
w

m
an

 A
p

p
ra

is
al

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

20
21

-2
02

2 
 (

53
67

 :
 B

o
w

m
ar

 A
p

p
ra

is
al

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

20
21

-2
02

2)



Page 5 of 5 
 

ADDENDUM #2 
 
Bowmar Appraisal Inc uses the Market Drive© 2 CAMA©3 program, Apex© Sketch Program, SPSS 
statistics program, Microsoft Office, Pictometry, County GIS, and other programs to perform the duties 
of the office of Assessor. 
 
Technology, innovation, and data security are increasing costs in today’s digital world and Bowmar 
Appraisal Inc is a leader in the use of Market Drive©  CAMA software.  Bowmar Appraisal Inc 
implemented computerized records, digital sketching, and digital pictures long before the Department of 
Revenue requirement that all assessment records be in a digital format.   
 
Bowmar Appraisal Inc has born the cost of these programs, the technology to safeguard the data, the 
staff time devoted to maintenance of the data, the dissemination of the stored records, and changing 
compliance issues. 
 
Bowmar Appraisal Inc chose the Market Drive© CAMA program years ago (prior to 2000) because of 
the hopes of widespread usage throughout Wisconsin in order to have more uniform assessments.  
Market Drive©  has become the most widely used CAMA program in the State of Wisconsin.  
Department of Revenue in the past created and distributed CAMA programs but ceased doing so in the 
mid 1990’s. 
 
Market Drive©  contains modules for the assessment of land, residential housing, manufactured 
housing, mobile home parks, outbuildings, commercial buildings, sketches (if user owns a sketch 
program), digital pictures, sales, personal property, and numerous reports.  Options for in depth sales 
analysis, income approach to value, and mapping are also available.  Market Drive©  allows for 
electronic reporting to Department of Revenue (required, as Department of Revenue no longer accepts 
paper reports) & County Real Property Tax Lister.  Market Drive© imports sales information from 
Department of Revenue and name/address updates from county databases. 
 

                                                 
2 Market Drive is a licensed product of Assessment Technologies LLC 
3 CAMA = Computer Assisted Mass Appraisal 

10.1.a

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

o
w

m
an

 A
p

p
ra

is
al

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

20
21

-2
02

2 
 (

53
67

 :
 B

o
w

m
ar

 A
p

p
ra

is
al

 C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

fo
r 

20
21

-2
02

2)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 73

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 74

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 75

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 99

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



11.1.a

Packet Pg. 100

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

R
ep

o
rt

s 
 (

53
51

 :
 F

ili
n

g
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

re
p

o
rt

s)



 

CITY OF MERRILL 
1004 EAST FIRST STREET 
MERRILL, WI 54452-2586 

 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2020- 
Introduced: September 8, 2020 
1st Reading: September 8, 2020  
2nd Reading: 
3rd Reading: 
Committee/Commission Action: 
RECOMMENDED FOR PASSAGE 
 

AN ORDINANCE 
 
The Common Council of the City of Merrill, Wisconsin, does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1. Chapter 36, Article V, Section 36-251 of the Code of Ordinances for the City of 
Merrill is amended to read as follows: 

 The intent of this article is to provide a means for persons to travel from a residence and/or 
lodging establishment within the limits of the City of Merrill for the shortest distance necessary for a 
person to operate an all-terrain vehicle or utility-terrain vehicle to the all-terrain vehicle or utility-terrain 
vehicle route or trail that is closest to that residence or lodging establishment. for the recreational use of 
all terrain vehicles and utility terrain vehicles within the City limits of Merrill as permitted by and consistent 
with WI Statutes. 

(a)  Such travel shall be allowed only when the connecting Lincoln County all-terrain vehicle and 
utility-terrain vehicle trails routes are open and operational.  

(b)  Routes may be closed at any time, by order of the chief of police.  

(c)  The city shall, from time to time, designate a route within the city limits, maps of which shall be 
kept on file with the office of the city clerk and the Merrill Police Department. That map 
delineates allowed routes of travel for all-terrain vehicles or utility-terrain vehicles.  

       (d)     The City shall erect signage at the entrances to the City identifying approved streets    
     of travel and/or prohibited routes of travel. Prohibited routes may have additional    
     signage erected. 

   

Section 2. Severability.  In the event any section, subsection, clause, phrase or portion of 
this ordinance is for any reason held illegal, invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent 
provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this ordinance. It 
is the legislative intent of the Common Council that this ordinance would have been adopted 
if such illegal provision had not been included or any illegal application had not been made. 

AN ORDINANCE: Health & Safety Committee 
 
Re: Amending Chapter 36, Article V, Section 36-

251, related to ATV/UTV routes.  

12.1.a

Packet Pg. 101

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 r
el

at
ed

 t
o

 A
T

V
 U

T
V

 t
ra

il 
ro

u
te

s 
 (

53
57

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 A
T

V
/U

T
V

 r
o

u
te

s)



Section 3. Repeal and Effective Date.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances and resolu-
tions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall take effect from and 
after its passage and publication. 

 
 
Moved by: 

 
Adopted: 

 
Approved: 

 
Published: 

 

Approved: 
 
 
Derek Woellner, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
William N. Heideman, City Clerk

 

12.1.a

Packet Pg. 102

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 r
el

at
ed

 t
o

 A
T

V
 U

T
V

 t
ra

il 
ro

u
te

s 
 (

53
57

 :
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 o
n

 A
T

V
/U

T
V

 r
o

u
te

s)



 

CITY OF MERRILL 
1004 EAST FIRST STREET 
MERRILL, WI 54452-2586 

 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 2020- 
Introduced: October 13, 2020 
1st Reading: 
2nd Reading: 
3rd Reading: 
Committee/Commission Action: 
RECOMMENDED FOR PASSAGE  
 

AN ORDINANCE 
 
The Common Council of the City of Merrill, Wisconsin, does ordain as follows: 
 

Section 1. Chapter 6, Article IV, Section 6-90 of the Code of Ordinances for the City of 
Merrill is amended to read as follows: 

 (a)  Protected animals.  

(1)  Possession and sale. It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or corporation to possess with 
intent to sell or offer for sale, or buy or attempt to buy, within the city any of the following 
animals, alive or dead, or any part or product thereof:  

a.  All wild cats of the family felidae;  

b.  Polar bear (Thalarctos maritimus);  

c.  Red wolf (Canis niger);  

d.  Vicuna (Vicugna vicugna);  

e.  Alligator, Caiman or crocodile of the order of crocodilia;  

f.  Gray or timber wolf (Canis lupus);  

g.  Sea otter (Enhydra lutris);  

h.  Pacific ridley turtle (Lepidochelys olivacea);  

i.  Atlantic green turtle (Chelonia mydas);  

j.  Mexican ridley turtle (Lepidochelys kempi).  

(2)  Compliance with federal regulations. It shall be unlawful for any person, firm or corporation to 
buy, sell or offer for sale a native or foreign species or subspecies of mammal, bird, amphibian 
or reptile, or the dead body or parts thereof, which appears on the endangered species list 
designated by the United States Secretary of the Interior and published in the Code of Federal 
Regulations pursuant to the Endangered Species Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-205).  

(3)  Regulating the importation of certain birds. No person, firm or corporation shall import or cause 
to be imported into this city any part of the plumage, skin or dead body of any species of hawk, 
owl or eagle. This section shall not be construed to forbid or restrict the importation or use of the 

AN ORDINANCE: Health & Safety Committee 
 
Re: Amending Chapter 6, Article IV, Section 6-90 

Prohibited and protected animals, fowl, reptiles 
and insects; pet shops; potbellied pigs. 

12.2.a

Packet Pg. 103

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 r
el

at
ed

 t
o

 n
u

m
b

er
 a

n
d

 s
iz

e 
o

f 
ap

ia
ri

es
 o

n
 p

ri
va

te
 p

ro
p

er
ty

  (
53

07
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 a

p
ia

ri
es

)



plumage, skin, body or any part thereof legally collected for use by the Native Americans for 
ceremonial purposes or in the preservation of their tribal customs and heritage.  

(b)  Exceptions. The provisions of subsection (a) of this section, shall not be deemed to prevent the 
lawful importation, possession, purchase or sale of any species by any public agency, institute of 
higher learning, persons holding federal permits, or by a person holding a scientific collectors permit 
issued by the secretary of the department of natural resources of the state, or to any person or 
organization licensed to present a circus.  

(c)  Wild animals; prohibition on keeping. Except for state-licensed game farms located in properly 
zoned areas, it shall be unlawful for any person to keep, maintain or have in his possession or under 
his control within the city any poisonous reptile or any other dangerous or carnivorous wild animal, 
insect or reptile, any vicious or dangerous domesticated animal or any other animal or reptile of wild, 
vicious or dangerous propensities. Specifically, it shall be unlawful for any person to keep, maintain 
or have in his possession or under his control within the city any of the following animals, reptiles or 
insects:  

(1)  All poisonous animals and reptiles including rear-fang snakes.  

(2)  Apes: chimpanzees (Pan); gibbons (Hylobates); gorillas (Gorilla); orangutans (Pongo); ans 
siamangs (Symphalangus).  

(3)  Baboons (Papoi, Mandrillus).  

(4)  Bears (Ursidae).  

(5)  Cheetahs (Ainonyx jubatus).  

(6)  Crocodilians (Crocodilia), 30 inches in length or more.  

(7)  Constrictor snakes, six feet in length or more.  

(8)  Coyotes (Canis latrans).  

(9)  Gamecocks and other fighting birds.  

(10)  Hyenas (Hyaenidae).  

(11)  Jaguars (Panthera onca).  

(12)  Leopards (Panthera pardus).  

(13)  Lions (Ppanthera leo).  

(14)  Lynxes (Lynx).  

(15)  Ostriches (Struthio).  

(16)  Pumas (Ffelis concolor); also known as cougars, mountain lions and panthers.  

(17)  Sharks (class Chondrichthyes).  

(18)  Snow leopards (Panthera uncia).  

(19)  Tigers (Panthera tigris).  

(20)  Poisonous insects.  

(21)  Except in properly zoned districts, horses, mules, ponies, donkeys, cows, pigs, goats, sheep, 
chickens, poultry or any animal raised for fur-bearing purposes, unless otherwise permitted 
elsewhere in this Code.  

(22)  Wolves or any dog which is part wolf (Canis lupis).  

(d)  Exceptions; pet shops. The prohibitions of subsection (c) of this section, shall not apply where the 
creatures are in the care, custody or control of: a state-licensed game farm; a veterinarian for 
treatment; agricultural fairs; shows or projects of the 4-H clubs; a display for judging purposes; an 
itinerant or transient carnival, circus or other show; dog or cat shows or trials; public or private 
educational institutions; zoological gardens; if:  

12.2.a

Packet Pg. 104

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 r
el

at
ed

 t
o

 n
u

m
b

er
 a

n
d

 s
iz

e 
o

f 
ap

ia
ri

es
 o

n
 p

ri
va

te
 p

ro
p

er
ty

  (
53

07
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 a

p
ia

ri
es

)



(1)  Their location conforms to the provisions of chapter 113.  

(2)  All animals and animal quarters are kept in a clean and sanitary condition and so maintained 
as to eliminate objectionable odors.  

(3)  Animals are maintained in quarters so constructed as to prevent their escape.  

(e)  Exception; Vietnamese potbellied pigs. Notwithstanding the prohibitions contained in this section, 
Vietnamese potbellied pigs may be kept within the city provided that the owners of such animals 
comply with the other regulations of this article, except for the licensing requirement contained in 
section 6-24.  

(f) Exception; Apiaries. A maximum of 3 apiary structures shall be allowed on private property. Each 
apiary shall not exceed ten (10) cubic feet in size. Apiaries shall be placed at least 10 feet from the 
property line. 

   

Section 2. Severability.  In the event any section, subsection, clause, phrase or portion of 
this ordinance is for any reason held illegal, invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent 
provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this ordinance. It 
is the legislative intent of the Common Council that this ordinance would have been adopted 
if such illegal provision had not been included or any illegal application had not been made. 

Section 3. Repeal and Effective Date.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances and resolu-
tions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.  This ordinance shall take effect from and 
after its passage and publication. 

 
 
 
Moved by: 

 
Adopted: 

 
Approved: 

 
Published: 

 

Approved: 
 
 
Derek Woellner, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
William N. Heideman, City Clerk

 

12.2.a

Packet Pg. 105

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 O

rd
in

an
ce

 r
el

at
ed

 t
o

 n
u

m
b

er
 a

n
d

 s
iz

e 
o

f 
ap

ia
ri

es
 o

n
 p

ri
va

te
 p

ro
p

er
ty

  (
53

07
 :

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 o

n
 a

p
ia

ri
es

)



RESOLUTION NO.  
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING A PRELIMINARY PLAT FOR SINGLE FAMILY 

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT BETWEEN 
 WEST ST. PAUL STREET AND WEST TENTH STREET  

IN THE CITY OF MERRILL  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Merrill ("The Applicant") has applied for preliminary 
approval of a subdivision plat pursuant to Code of Ordinances Sec.111-114 for 
land located in Lots One, Two, Three, and Four of Certified Survey Map No. 
2763, recorded on February 24, 2020, in Volume 16 of Certified Surveys, page 
144, as Document No. 541501, in the office of the Register of Deeds for Lincoln 
County, Wisconsin; and  
 

WHEREAS, The City Plan Commission considered the application at a 
hearing, duly noticed, and scheduled on October 7, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, The City Plan Commission recommends approval of the 
preliminary plat subject to certain conditions; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN this 13th day of October, 2020, that  

1. The Common Council Adopts the City Plan Commissions findings 
and incorporates them into this resolution. 

2. The proposed preliminary plat of Single Family Residential 
Development between West St. Paul Street and West Tenth Street 
presented by City of Merrill and prepared by Joshua Prentice for 
REI and involving a subdivision plat pursuant to Code of 
Ordinances Sec.111-114 for land located in Lots One, Two, Three, 
and Four of Certified Survey Map No. 2763, recorded on February 
24, 2020, in Volume 16 of Certified Surveys, page 144, as 
Document No. 541501, in the office of the Register of Deeds for 
Lincoln County, Wisconsin is hereby approved. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED That the applicant, City of Merrill is directed 
to prepare the final plat in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 111 of 
the Code of Ordinances of the City of Merrill and present the final plat for review 
by the City Plan Commission. 

 
Recommended by: City Plan 
Commission 
 
Moved: 

Passed: 

 

CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
Derek Woellner 
Mayor 
 
 
 
William N. Heideman 
City Clerk

 
 

13.1.a

Packet Pg. 106

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

t 
fo

r 
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
 (

53
68

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 P
re

m
in

ar
y 

P
la

t 
fo

r 
R

es
id

en
ti

al
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t)



13.1.b

Packet Pg. 107

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
P

la
t 

fo
r 

D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

 (
53

68
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 P

re
m

in
ar

y 
P

la
t 

fo
r 

R
es

id
en

ti
al



ACTION TAKEN AT 10/7/20 CITY PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
 
1. Preliminary Plat for Single Family Residential Development between West St. 

Paul Street and West Tenth Street   
 
Motion (Schroeder/Schwartzman) to approve. Carried 6-0 on roll call vote. Abstaining - 
Gulke.  

 

13.1.c

Packet Pg. 108

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

ct
io

n
 f

ro
m

 C
it

y 
P

la
n

 o
n

 P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

t 
fo

r 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
 (

53
68

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 P
re

m
in

ar
y 

P
la

t 
fo

r 
R

es
id

en
ti

al
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t)



 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO  
REMODEL EXISTING BUILDING AND  

CONSTRUCT TWO NEW STORAGE UNIT BUILDINGS AT  
305 E 1ST STREET, MERRILL  

 
WHEREAS, Randall and Diane Wixson, d/b/a RC-N-DI Investments, LLC 

have requested a conditional use permit pursuant to the Merrill Zoning Code 
Chapter 113, Article IV, Section 113 for the purpose of remodeling existing 
building, which may be used for light manufacturing, and constructing two new 
storage unit buildings on the following described property: 

TB Scott Lbr Co Add’n Lts 3-4-5-6 Blk 9, City of Merrill, Lincoln County, 
Wisconsin,   
 
Commonly known as 305 E 1ST Street herein referred to as the 

“Premises”; and,  

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission scheduled a hearing on the 
application on October 7, 2020, due public notice having been given and 
opportunity given to those interested to speak on the application; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission has reviewed the Application, 
found that it does meet the requirements of Merrill Zoning Code, Chapter 113, 
Article IV, Section 113 and has recommended approval of said application; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN this 13th day of October, 2020, that a 
conditional use permit shall be issued to Randall and Diane Wixson, d/b/a RC-N-
DI Investments, LLC for the purpose of remodeling existing building, which may 
be used for light manufacturing, and constructing two new storage unit buildings 
on the aforesaid described premises. This Conditional Use Permit shall allow the 
new and existing buildings to be accessed from the existing Right of Way. 

 
Recommended by: City Plan 
Commission  
 
 
Moved: 

 
Passed: 

 

 
CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
Derek Woellner 
Mayor 
 
 
 
William N. Heideman 
City Clerk 

 
 

13.2.a

Packet Pg. 109

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 C
U

P
 f

o
r 

R
an

d
y 

W
ix

so
n

  (
53

69
 :

 R
eo

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 C
U

P
 f

o
r 

st
o

ra
g

e 
u

n
it

s 
fo

r 
R

an
d

y 
W

ix
so

n
)



13.2.b

Packet Pg. 110

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

U
P

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
R

an
d

y 
W

ix
so

n
 r

eq
u

es
t 

 (
53

69
 :

 R
eo

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 C
U

P
 f

o
r 

st
o

ra
g

e 
u

n
it

s 
fo

r 
R

an
d

y 
W

ix
so

n
)



13.2.b

Packet Pg. 111

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

U
P

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
R

an
d

y 
W

ix
so

n
 r

eq
u

es
t 

 (
53

69
 :

 R
eo

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 C
U

P
 f

o
r 

st
o

ra
g

e 
u

n
it

s 
fo

r 
R

an
d

y 
W

ix
so

n
)



13.2.b

Packet Pg. 112

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

U
P

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
R

an
d

y 
W

ix
so

n
 r

eq
u

es
t 

 (
53

69
 :

 R
eo

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 C
U

P
 f

o
r 

st
o

ra
g

e 
u

n
it

s 
fo

r 
R

an
d

y 
W

ix
so

n
)



13.2.b

Packet Pg. 113

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

U
P

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 f
o

r 
R

an
d

y 
W

ix
so

n
 r

eq
u

es
t 

 (
53

69
 :

 R
eo

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 C
U

P
 f

o
r 

st
o

ra
g

e 
u

n
it

s 
fo

r 
R

an
d

y 
W

ix
so

n
)



ACTION TAKEN AT 10/7/20 CITY PLAN COMMISSION MEETING 
 
2. Conditional Use Permit application from Randy Wixon for development of 

storage buildings at 305 East First Street.   
Motion (Hass/Schwartzman) to approve, including the stipulation that light manufacturing 
would be allowed in the existing building. Carried.  

 

13.2.c

Packet Pg. 114

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 A

ct
io

n
 f

ro
m

 C
it

y 
P

la
n

 o
n

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
al

 U
se

 P
er

m
it

 -
 W

ix
so

n
  (

53
69

 :
 R

eo
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

U
P

 f
o

r 
st

o
ra

g
e 

u
n

it
s 

fo
r 

R
an

d
y 

W
ix

so
n

)



13.3.a

Packet Pg. 115

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ID
11

-J
J 

P
re

m
ie

r 
H

o
u

si
n

g
  (

53
58

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 J

J 
P

re
m

ei
re

)



13.3.a

Packet Pg. 116

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ID
11

-J
J 

P
re

m
ie

r 
H

o
u

si
n

g
  (

53
58

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 J

J 
P

re
m

ei
re

)



13.3.a

Packet Pg. 117

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ID
11

-J
J 

P
re

m
ie

r 
H

o
u

si
n

g
  (

53
58

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 J

J 
P

re
m

ei
re

)



13.3.a

Packet Pg. 118

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ID
11

-J
J 

P
re

m
ie

r 
H

o
u

si
n

g
  (

53
58

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 J

J 
P

re
m

ei
re

)



13.3.a

Packet Pg. 119

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ID
11

-J
J 

P
re

m
ie

r 
H

o
u

si
n

g
  (

53
58

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 J

J 
P

re
m

ei
re

)



13.3.a

Packet Pg. 120

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ID
11

-J
J 

P
re

m
ie

r 
H

o
u

si
n

g
  (

53
58

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 J

J 
P

re
m

ei
re

)



13.3.a

Packet Pg. 121

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ID
11

-J
J 

P
re

m
ie

r 
H

o
u

si
n

g
  (

53
58

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 J

J 
P

re
m

ei
re

)



13.3.a

Packet Pg. 122

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ID
11

-J
J 

P
re

m
ie

r 
H

o
u

si
n

g
  (

53
58

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 J

J 
P

re
m

ei
re

)



13.3.a

Packet Pg. 123

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ID
11

-J
J 

P
re

m
ie

r 
H

o
u

si
n

g
  (

53
58

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 J

J 
P

re
m

ei
re

)



13.3.a

Packet Pg. 124

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ID
11

-J
J 

P
re

m
ie

r 
H

o
u

si
n

g
  (

53
58

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 J

J 
P

re
m

ei
re

)



13.3.a

Packet Pg. 125

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ID
11

-J
J 

P
re

m
ie

r 
H

o
u

si
n

g
  (

53
58

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 J

J 
P

re
m

ei
re

)



 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO  
REMODEL EXISTING BUILDING AND  

CONSTRUCT TWO NEW STORAGE UNIT BUILDINGS AT  
305 E 1ST STREET, MERRILL  

 
WHEREAS, Randall and Diane Wixson, d/b/a RC-N-DI Investments, LLC 

have requested a conditional use permit pursuant to the Merrill Zoning Code 
Chapter 113, Article IV, Section 113 for the purpose of remodeling existing 
building, which may be used for light manufacturing, and constructing two new 
storage unit buildings on the following described property: 

TB Scott Lbr Co Add’n Lts 3-4-5-6 Blk 9, City of Merrill, Lincoln County, 
Wisconsin,   
 
Commonly known as 305 E 1ST Street herein referred to as the 

“Premises”; and,  

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission scheduled a hearing on the 
application on October 7, 2020, due public notice having been given and 
opportunity given to those interested to speak on the application; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Plan Commission has reviewed the Application, 
found that it does meet the requirements of Merrill Zoning Code, Chapter 113, 
Article IV, Section 113 and has recommended approval of said application; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF 
THE CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN this 13th day of October, 2020, that a 
conditional use permit shall be issued to Randall and Diane Wixson, d/b/a RC-N-
DI Investments, LLC for the purpose of remodeling existing building, which may 
be used for light manufacturing, and constructing two new storage unit buildings 
on the aforesaid described premises. This Conditional Use Permit shall allow the 
new and existing buildings to be accessed from the existing Right of Way. 

 
Recommended by: City Plan 
Commission  
 
 
Moved: 

 
Passed: 

 

 
CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
Derek Woellner 
Mayor 
 
 
 
William N. Heideman 
City Clerk 

 
 

13.4.a

Packet Pg. 126

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 C
U

P
 f

o
r 

R
an

d
y 

W
ix

so
n

  (
53

59
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 o

n
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
A

g
re

em
en

t 
w

it
h

 R
an

d
y 

W
ix

so
n

)



13.4.b

Packet Pg. 127

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ID
6-

W
ix

so
n

 S
to

ra
g

e 
 (

53
59

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 R

an
d

y 
W

ix
so

n
)



13.4.b

Packet Pg. 128

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ID
6-

W
ix

so
n

 S
to

ra
g

e 
 (

53
59

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 R

an
d

y 
W

ix
so

n
)



13.4.b

Packet Pg. 129

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ID
6-

W
ix

so
n

 S
to

ra
g

e 
 (

53
59

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 R

an
d

y 
W

ix
so

n
)



13.4.b

Packet Pg. 130

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ID
6-

W
ix

so
n

 S
to

ra
g

e 
 (

53
59

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 R

an
d

y 
W

ix
so

n
)



13.4.b

Packet Pg. 131

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ID
6-

W
ix

so
n

 S
to

ra
g

e 
 (

53
59

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 R

an
d

y 
W

ix
so

n
)



13.4.b

Packet Pg. 132

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ID
6-

W
ix

so
n

 S
to

ra
g

e 
 (

53
59

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 R

an
d

y 
W

ix
so

n
)



13.4.b

Packet Pg. 133

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ID
6-

W
ix

so
n

 S
to

ra
g

e 
 (

53
59

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 R

an
d

y 
W

ix
so

n
)



13.4.b

Packet Pg. 134

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ID
6-

W
ix

so
n

 S
to

ra
g

e 
 (

53
59

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 R

an
d

y 
W

ix
so

n
)



13.4.b

Packet Pg. 135

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ID
6-

W
ix

so
n

 S
to

ra
g

e 
 (

53
59

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 R

an
d

y 
W

ix
so

n
)



13.4.b

Packet Pg. 136

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ID
6-

W
ix

so
n

 S
to

ra
g

e 
 (

53
59

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 R

an
d

y 
W

ix
so

n
)



13.4.b

Packet Pg. 137

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 T

ID
6-

W
ix

so
n

 S
to

ra
g

e 
 (

53
59

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
g

re
em

en
t 

w
it

h
 R

an
d

y 
W

ix
so

n
)



RESOLUTION NO. ______ 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE AND SALE 
OF A $1,069,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION PROMISSORY 

NOTE 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Merrill, Lincoln County, Wisconsin (“City”), is presently in need of 
funds aggregating $1,069,000 for public purpose of financing acquisition of buses in anticipation 
of grant funding; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Council deems it necessary and in the best interests of the City that, 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 67.12(12), Wisconsin Statutes, the sum of $1,069,000 be 
borrowed for such purpose(s) upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth: 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that for the purpose(s) hereinabove set forth 
the City, by its Mayor, and Clerk, pursuant to Section 67.12(12), Wisconsin Statutes, borrow 
from First State Bank the sum of $1,069,000, and, to evidence such indebtedness, said Mayor 
and City Clerk shall make, execute and deliver to the Lender for and on behalf of the City the 
promissory note of the City to be dated October 20, 2020, in said principal amount with interest 
at the rate of ninety-five hundredths percent (0.95%) per annum and payable as follows: 

7 
In one payment on March 1, 2021, plus interest payable as set forth below.  
 
Interest is computed for the actual number of days principal is unpaid on the basis of a 

360 day year. Said interest to be payable on the dates set forth above on the outstanding 
principal balance, with prepayment privileges on any date on or after October 20, 2020. A copy 
of the promissory note shall be attached to this resolution. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that there be, and there hereby is, levied on all the 

taxable property of the City, a direct annual irrepealable tax sufficient in amount to pay the 
principal and interest on said note as the same becomes due and payable, said tax to be in the 
following minimum amounts: 

 
$1,072,639.05 due on March 1, 2021 for the year 2020. 
 
If at any time there shall be on hand insufficient funds from the aforesaid tax levy to meet 

principal and/or interest payments on said note when due, the requisite amount shall be paid 
from other funds of the City then available, which sums shall be replaced upon the collection of 
the taxes herein levied.  

 
In the event that the City exercises its prepayment privilege, if any, then no such direct 

annual tax shall be included on the tax rolls for the prepayments made and the amount of direct 
annual tax hereinabove levied shall be reduced accordingly for the year or years with respect to 
which said note was prepaid.  

 
In each of said levy years, the direct annual tax so levied shall be carried into the tax 

rolls each year and shall be collected in the same manner and at the same time as other taxes 

13.5.a

Packet Pg. 138

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

 N
o

te
  (

53
61

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
G

O
 B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

)



of the City for such years are collected; provided, that the amount of tax carried into the tax roll 
may be reduced in any year by the amount of any surplus in the debt service account for the 
note. So long as any part of the principal of, or interest on, said note remains unpaid, the 
proceeds of said tax shall be segregated in a special fund used solely for the payment of the 
principal of, and interest on, said note. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that there be and there hereby is established in the 

treasury of the City, if one has not already been established, a debt service fund, separate and 
distinct from every other fund, which shall be maintained in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. Sinking funds established for obligations previously issued by the City 
may be considered as separate and distinct accounts within the debt service fund. Within the 
debt service fund, there be and there hereby is established a separate and distinct account 
designated as the “Debt Service Account for Promissory Note dated October 20, 2020”, which 
account shall be used solely for the purpose of paying principal of and interest on said note. 
There shall be deposited in said account any accrued interest paid on said note at the time it is 
delivered to the Lender, all money raised by taxation or appropriated pursuant hereto, and such 
other sums as may be necessary to pay principal and interest on said note when the same shall 
become due. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the proceeds of said note shall be used solely for the 

purposes for which it is issued, but may be temporarily invested until needed in legal 
investments, provided that no such investment shall be in such a manner as would cause said 
note to be an “arbitrage bond” within the meaning of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code 
of 1986, as amended, or the Regulations of the Commissioner of Internal Revenue there-under; 
and an officer of the City, charged with the responsibility for issuing the note, shall certify by use 
of an arbitrage certificate, if required, that, on the basis of the facts, estimates and 
circumstances in existence on the date of the delivery of the note, it is not expected that the 
proceeds will be used in a manner that would cause said note to be an “arbitrage bond”.   

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the projects financed by the note and their 

ownership, management and use will note cause the note to be a “private activity bond” within 
the meaning of Section 141 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and that the 
City shall comply with the provisions of the Code to the extent necessary to maintain the tax-
exempt status of the interest on the note. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk shall keep records for the registration 

and for the transfer of the note. The person in whose name the note shall be registered shall be 
deemed and regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes and payment of either 
principal or interest on the note shall be made only to the registered owner thereof. All such 
payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the liability upon such note to the 
extent of the sum or sums so paid. The note may be transferred by the registered owner thereof 
by presentation of the note at the office of the City Clerk, duly endorsed for the transfer or 
accompanied by an assignment duly executed by the registered owner or his legal 
representative duly authorized in writing. Upon such presentation, the note shall be transferred 
by appropriate entry in the registration records and a similar notation, including date of 
registration, name of new registered owner and signature of the City Clerk, shall be made on 
such note. 

 

13.5.a

Packet Pg. 139

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

 N
o

te
  (

53
61

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
G

O
 B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

)



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the note is hereby designated as a “qualified tax-
exempt obligation” for purposes of Section 265 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended, relating to the ability of financial institutions to deduct from income, for federal income 
tax purposed, interest expense that is allocable to carrying and acquiring tax-exempt 
obligations. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City officials are hereby authorized and directed, 

so long as said note is outstanding, to deliver the Lender any audit statement or other financial 
information the Lender may reasonably request and to discuss its affairs and finances with the 
Lender. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that said note shall be delivered to the Lender on or after 

the date of said note, upon receipt of the total principal amount of the loan evidenced thereby, 
plus accrued interest, if any, to date of delivery, provided that, if this is a refinancing, the 
refunding note shall be immediately exchanged for the note being refinanced. 

 
 

Recommended by: The Common Council   CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
        _____________________________ 
        Derek Woellner 
        Mayor 
Moved:  _________________________ 
 
Passed:  _________________________   _____________________________ 
        William N. Heideman 
        City Clerk 

 
 

13.5.a

Packet Pg. 140

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 G
O

 N
o

te
  (

53
61

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
G

O
 B

o
rr

o
w

in
g

)



13.5.b

Packet Pg. 141

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

O
 N

o
te

 -
 In

te
ri

m
 T

ra
n

si
t 

20
20

  (
53

61
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

G
O

 B
o

rr
o

w
in

g
)



13.5.b

Packet Pg. 142

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

O
 N

o
te

 -
 In

te
ri

m
 T

ra
n

si
t 

20
20

  (
53

61
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

G
O

 B
o

rr
o

w
in

g
)



13.5.b

Packet Pg. 143

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

O
 N

o
te

 -
 In

te
ri

m
 T

ra
n

si
t 

20
20

  (
53

61
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

G
O

 B
o

rr
o

w
in

g
)



13.5.b

Packet Pg. 144

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

O
 N

o
te

 -
 In

te
ri

m
 T

ra
n

si
t 

20
20

  (
53

61
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

G
O

 B
o

rr
o

w
in

g
)



13.5.b

Packet Pg. 145

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

O
 N

o
te

 -
 In

te
ri

m
 T

ra
n

si
t 

20
20

  (
53

61
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

G
O

 B
o

rr
o

w
in

g
)



13.5.b

Packet Pg. 146

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

O
 N

o
te

 -
 In

te
ri

m
 T

ra
n

si
t 

20
20

  (
53

61
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

G
O

 B
o

rr
o

w
in

g
)



13.5.b

Packet Pg. 147

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

O
 N

o
te

 -
 In

te
ri

m
 T

ra
n

si
t 

20
20

  (
53

61
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

G
O

 B
o

rr
o

w
in

g
)



13.5.b

Packet Pg. 148

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

O
 N

o
te

 -
 In

te
ri

m
 T

ra
n

si
t 

20
20

  (
53

61
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

G
O

 B
o

rr
o

w
in

g
)



13.5.b

Packet Pg. 149

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 G

O
 N

o
te

 -
 In

te
ri

m
 T

ra
n

si
t 

20
20

  (
53

61
 :

 R
es

o
lu

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

G
O

 B
o

rr
o

w
in

g
)



RESOLUTION NO.  
 

A RESOLUTION INTRODUCED BY MAYOR DEREK WOELLNER 
REGARDING THE USE OF FACE MASKS   

 
WHEREAS, the United States Center for Disease Control (CDC) updated 

their webpage, “How Coronavirus Spreads,” on October 5th, 2020, stating:   

"COVID-19 most commonly spreads during close contact.  
• People who are physically near (within 6 feet) a person with 

COVID-19 or have direct contact with that person are at greatest 
risk of infection. 

• When people with COVID-19 cough, sneeze, sing, talk, or breathe 
they produce respiratory droplets. These droplets can range in size 
from larger droplets (some of which are visible) to smaller droplets. 
Small droplets can also form particles when they dry very quickly in 
the airstream. 

• Infections occur mainly through exposure to respiratory droplets 
when a person is in close contact with someone who has COVID-
19. 

• Respiratory droplets cause infection when they are inhaled or 
deposited on mucous membranes, such as those that line the 
inside of the nose and mouth. 

• As the respiratory droplets travel further from the person with 
COVID-19, the concentration of these droplets decreases. Larger 
droplets fall out of the air due to gravity. Smaller droplets and 
particles spread apart in the air. 

• With passing time, the amount of infectious virus in respiratory 
 droplets also decreases. 
COVID-19 can sometimes be spread by airborne transmission 

• Some infections can be spread by exposure to virus in small 
droplets and particles that can linger in the air for minutes to hours. 
These viruses may be able to infect people who are further than 6 
feet away from the person who is infected or after that person has 
left the space. 

• This kind of spread is referred to as airborne transmission and is an 
important way that infections like tuberculosis, measles, and 
chicken pox are spread. 

• There is evidence that under certain conditions, people with 
COVID-19 seem to have infected others who were more than 6 feet 
away. These transmissions occurred within enclosed spaces that 
had inadequate ventilation. Sometimes the infected person was 
breathing heavily, for example while singing or exercising. 

o Under these circumstances, scientists believe that the 
amount of infectious smaller droplet and particles produced 
by the people with COVID-19 became concentrated enough 
to spread the virus to other people. The people who were 
infected were in the same space during the same time or 
shortly after the person with COVID-19 had left. 

13.6.a

Packet Pg. 150

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 M
as

ks
  (

53
70

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 m
as

ks
)



• Available data indicate that it is much more common for the virus 
that causes COVID-19 to spread through close contact with a 
person who has COVID-19 than through airborne transmission.  

COVID-19 spreads less commonly through contact with contaminated 
surfaces. 

• Respiratory droplets can also land on surfaces and objects. It is 
possible that a person could get COVID-19 by touching a surface or 
object that has the virus on it and then touching their own mouth, 
nose, or eyes. 

• Spread from touching surfaces is not thought to be a common way 
that COVID-19 spreads."; and, 

WHEREAS, the CDC also states on their “Cloth Face Cover Guidance” 
webpage update August 7th, 2020: 

"Masks are recommended as a simple barrier to help prevent 
respiratory droplets from traveling into the air and onto other people when 
the person wearing the mask coughs, sneezes, talks, or raises their voice. 
This is called source control. This recommendation is based on what we 
know about the role respiratory droplets play in the spread of the virus that 
causes COVID-19, paired with emerging evidence from clinical and 
laboratory studies that shows masks reduce the spray of droplets when 
worn over the nose and mouth. COVID-19 spreads mainly among people 
who are in close contact with one another (within about 6 feet), so the use 
of masks is particularly important in settings where people are close to 
each other or where social distancing is difficult to maintain." 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN this 13th day of October, 2020, that all citizens 
are urged to familiarize themselves with and to follow the current guidelines from 
the CDC by visiting the following webpage 
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/cloth-face-
cover-guidance.html. 

 

Recommended by:  
 
 
Moved: 

 
Passed: 

 

CITY OF MERRILL, WISCONSIN 
 
 
Derek Woellner 
Mayor 
 
 
 
William N. Heideman 
City Clerk 

 
 
 

13.6.a

Packet Pg. 151

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 M
as

ks
  (

53
70

 :
 R

es
o

lu
ti

o
n

 o
n

 m
as

ks
)

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/cloth-face-cover-guidance.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/cloth-face-cover-guidance.html

	Agenda Packet
	1. Call to Order
	1. Roll Call

	2. Silent Prayer
	3. Pledge of Allegiance
	4. Roll Call
	5. Public Comment Period
	6. Minutes of previous Common Council meeting(s):
	1. 5352 : Minutes of September 8, 2020 Common Council meeting
	a. Council Minutes 9-8-2020


	7. Revenue & Expense Reports(s):
	1. 5353 : Revenue & Expense Report for the period ending September 30, 2020
	a. Revenue-Expense Report - 2020-09


	8. General agenda items:
	1. 5355 : Employee Years of Service Recognition:
	5356 : Donald A. Norman, 15 years (Police Department)

	9. Committee of the Whole:
	1. 5360 : Create Fire Inspector position in the Fire Department
	a. Action from COW on Fire Inspector position
	b. Fire Inspector position info


	10. Personnel & Finance Committee:
	1. 5367 : Bowmar Appraisal Contract for 2021-2022
	a. Bowman Appraisal Contract for 2021-2022


	11. Placing Committee Reports on File:
	1. 5351 : Filing Committee reports
	a. Committee Reports


	12. Ordinances:
	1. 5357 : Ordinance on ATV/UTV routes
	a. Ordinance related to ATV UTV trail routes

	2. 5307 : Ordinance on apiaries
	a. Ordinance related to number and size of apiaries on private property


	13. Resolutions:
	1. 5368 : Resolution on Preminary Plat for Residential Development
	a. Resolution on Preliminary Plat for development
	b. Preliminary Plat for Development
	c. Action from City Plan on Preliminary Plat for Development

	2. 5369 : Reolution on CUP for storage units for Randy Wixson
	a. Resolution on CUP for Randy Wixson
	b. CUP Information for Randy Wixson request
	c. Action from City Plan on Conditional Use Permit - Wixson

	3. 5358 : Resolution on Development Agreement with JJ Premeire
	a. TID11-JJ Premier Housing

	4. 5359 : Resolution on Development Agreement with Randy Wixson
	a. Resolution on CUP for Randy Wixson
	b. TID6-Wixson Storage

	5. 5361 : Resolution for GO Borrowing
	a. Resolution on GO Note
	b. GO Note - Interim Transit 2020

	6. 5370 : Resolution on masks
	a. Resolution on Masks


	14. Mayor's Communications
	15. Adjournment

	Appendix
	6.1.a · Council Minutes 9-8-2020
	7.1.a · Revenue-Expense Report - 2020-09
	9.1.a · Action from COW on Fire Inspector position
	9.1.b · Fire Inspector position info
	10.1.a · Bowman Appraisal Contract for 2021-2022
	11.1.a · Committee Reports
	12.1.a · Ordinance related to ATV UTV trail routes
	12.2.a · Ordinance related to number and size of apiaries on private property
	13.1.a · Resolution on Preliminary Plat for development
	13.1.b · Preliminary Plat for Development
	13.1.c · Action from City Plan on Preliminary Plat for Development
	13.2.a · Resolution on CUP for Randy Wixson
	13.2.b · CUP Information for Randy Wixson request
	13.2.c · Action from City Plan on Conditional Use Permit - Wixson
	13.3.a · TID11-JJ Premier Housing
	13.4.a · Resolution on CUP for Randy Wixson
	13.4.b · TID6-Wixson Storage
	13.5.a · Resolution on GO Note
	13.5.b · GO Note - Interim Transit 2020
	13.6.a · Resolution on Masks


